THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT  
John D. McLeod, Administrative Law Judge

Lower Case No.: 2014-ALJ-04-0365-AP  
Appellate Case No.: 2014-002613

Kevin J. Daniels, #247291,

v.

South Carolina Department of Corrections,

**RECEIVED**

JUL 24 2015

SC Court of Appeals

Appellant,

Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Kevin J. Daniels, #247291  
Walden Correctional Institution  
Bldg. 2 - 32T  
4340 Broad River Road  
Columbia, South Carolina 29210  
Appellant, pro se  
c. c.

#

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. DID THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (SCDC) UNLAWFULLY EXERCISE JUDICIAL AUTHORITY BY IMPOSING THE SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT NUMBER 2012-GS-40-00680 ON APPELLANT WITHOUT A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION HAVING GIVEN APPELLANT NOTICE AND A HEARING TO DETERMINE WHETHER APPELLANT VIOLATED THE CONDITIONS OF THE SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT NUMBER 2012-GS-40-00680? Yes.
- II. DID THE UNLAWFUL IMPOSITION BY SCDC OF APPELLANT'S SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT NUMBER 2012-GS-40-00680 ADVERSELY AFFECT THE CALCULATION OF APPELLANT'S STRING OF CONCURRENT SENTENCES? Yes.
- III. WAS THE FINAL AGENCY DECISION IN VIOLATION OF CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY PROVISIONS; IN EXCESS OF STATUTORY AUTHORITY OF THE AGENCY; MADE UPON UNLAWFUL PROCEDURE; AFFECTED BY OTHER ERROR OF LAW; CLEARLY ERRONEOUS IN VIEW OF THE RELIABLE, PROBATIVE, AND SUBSTANTIVE EVIDENCE ON THE WHOLE RECORD, OR CAPRICIOUS OR CLEARLY UNWARRANTED EXERCISE OF DISCRETION? Yes.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter is before the South Carolina Court of Appeals pursuant to the notice of appeal filed by Kevin J. Daniels, in the case of Kevin J. Daniels, #247291 v. SCDC, Appellate case No.: 2015-002613 who is confined in the S.C. Dept. of Corrections at Walden Correctional Institution. Appellant, Kevin J. Daniels contends that the South Carolina Department of Corrections, an executive branch agency of government unlawfully exercised the authority of the judicial branch of government when the agency imposed the suspended sentence on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680 on appellant before he was given notice and a hearing to determine whether appellant violated the conditions of the suspended sentence on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680, and because of the unlawful exercise of judicial authority by an executive branch government agency appellant's sentence has been miscalculated extending appellant's sentence end date by one year and twenty-three days.

Appellant filed his initial Brief on January 22, 2015. Appellant has never claimed his sentence was miscalculated by a clerical error or mistake as Respondents alleges in their Brief on page 2. I take exception to that statement by Respondents in their Brief. That statement has no veracity and is no more than a blatant attempt to mislead the Court in this case.

Appellant's Reply Brief was filed and served upon Respondent on January 22, 2015. This Final Brief of Appellant follows.

## ARGUMENT

I. SCDC UNLAWFULLY EXERCISE JUDICIAL AUTHORITY BY IMPOSING THE SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT NUMBER 2012-GS-40-00680 ON APPELLANT WITHOUT A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION HAVING PROVIDED APPELLANT NOTICE AND A HEARING TO DETERMINE WHETHER APPELLANT VIOLATED THE CONDITIONS OF THE SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT NUMBER 2012GS 40-00680?

Appellant was sentenced in the Richland county court of general sessions on 9-13-2012 by the Honorable DeAndrea Benjamin, Circuit Court Judge to serve six years of incarceration suspended, upon the successful completion of the Well of Hope and Restoration long term, residential Christian alcohol and substance abuse treatment program with 388 days of jail time to be awarded appellant/defendant by the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to S.C. Code Section 24-13-40.

Appellant reported to the Well of Hope Facilities in Columbia, South Carolina remaining there until October 14, 2012. Appellant voluntarily removed himself from the Well of Hope program on October 14, 2012 without successfully completing the program. Several months later on February 2, 2013 appellant was arrested in the city of Columbia, within Lexington county on unrelated charges and detained in the Lexington county detention center to await trial on that case, after being sentenced on the February 2, 2013 charges from Lexington appellant was transferred to the custody of the South Carolina Department of Corrections to begin service of the sentence

he received in Lexington county on March 15, 2013. A bench warrant for the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680 was placed on appellant when he was transferred to the S. C. Dept. of Corrections on 3-20-2013. To this date as of July 15, 2015 appellant has never appeared in court to have a hearing to determine whether he violated the conditions of the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680, however, at some unknown date and time between March 20, 2013 and June 1, 2013 the S. C. Dept. of Corrections imposed the suspended sentence from indictment 2012-GS-40-00680 on appellant without a court of competent jurisdiction providing appellant notice and a hearing to determine whether appellant violated the conditions of the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680.

In Perkins v. State, the South Carolina Supreme Court quoting, "Dangerfield v. State, 376 S. C. 176, 181, 656 S. E.2d 352, 355 (2008) (holding that the imposition of a suspended sentence deprived the defendant of a conditional liberty interest and implicated the defendant's due process rights). Therefore, like any other defendant who is subject to the imposition of a suspended sentence, we conclude that a Drug Court program participant is entitled to a hearing to determine whether he has violated the conditions of his suspended sentence before it may be imposed. " "The decision of whether a defendant violated conditions of his suspended sentence," the Court further explained in Perkins v. State, "rests within the sound discretion of the trial court. See State v. Miller, 122 S. C. 468, 474-75, 115 S. E. 742, 745 (1923) (holding that the nature of the inquiry and extent of the

investigation to be conducted by a lower court in determining whether the condition of a suspended sentence has been violated are matters that rest in the sound discretion of that court). " Id.

In appellant's case the South Carolina Department of Corrections simply imposed the suspended sentence upon appellant after he was committed to the Department's custody to begin service of a sentence not related to the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680. The appellant to this date has never been provided notice and a hearing on the suspended sentence to determine whether he violated the condition of same. This action of imposing the suspended sentence on appellant by SCDC without notice and a hearing by the trial court denied appellant's U. S. Constitutional rights to due process.

II. APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO CREDIT OF 388 DAYS OF JAILTIME FROM INDICTMENT 2012-GS-40-00680 CREDITED TO HIS SENTENCE ON THE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE SERVICE OF THE SERVICE OF THE SUSPENDED SENTENCE ON INDICTMENT 2012-GS-40-00680.

South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 24-13-40, states in pertinent part that, " The computation of the time served by prisoners under sentences imposed by the courts of this State must be calculated from the date of imposition of the sentence. However, when . . . (c) the court shall have designated a specific —

time for the commencement of the service of the sentence, the computation of the time served must be calculated from the date of commencement of the service of the sentence. . . ."

In appellant's case the State department of corrections imposed the suspended sentence on appellant without him having been provided notice and a hearing by a court of competent jurisdiction, to determine whether he violated the condition of the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680. The DOC denied appellant the 388 days of jailtime credit attached to the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680 since, appellant has never lawfully commenced service of the suspended sentence, therefore, DOC is prohibited by law from computing the time served (388 days of jailtime) connected to the suspended sentence since, pursuant to S. C. Code Section Section 24-13-40 specifies that the time served is to be computed on the date of the commencement of the service of the suspended sentence. - See above

In Tant v. SCDC, 759 S. E. 2d 398 the South Carolina Court of Appeals quoting, State v. Archie, 322 S. C. 135, 470 S. E. 2d 388, explained that, "The exercise of sentencing authority by the Department would violate the separation of powers doctrine." See State v. Archie.

In appellant's case concerning the imposition of the suspended sentence on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680, the Department imposed the suspended sentence upon appellant from indictment 2012-GS-40-00680 without any court of competent jurisdiction first having

provided appellant notice and a hearing to determine whether appellant violated the conditions of the suspended sentence on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680. This unauthorized exercise of sentencing authority by the Department of Corrections an executive branch agency of State government is violative of the separation of powers doctrine and violates appellant's due process rights under the South Carolina Constitution of 1895, and the United States Constitution. See above State v. Archie, and Pertins v. State.

### CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated this Court should reverse the judgement of the Administrative Law Judge, command the South Carolina Department of Corrections to Credit the (388), three hundred and eighty eight days partime/time served credit to appellant's sentence computation commencing on the date appellant begins service of his suspended sentence on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680; and/or in the alternative, remand this case to the South Carolina Administrative Law Court for further development of the record concerning the date of the commencement of the service of appellant's suspended sentence begins on indictment 2012-GS-40-00680, and grant appellant any such other and further relief the ends of justice may require in this case.

5.