THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT **RECEIVED**

John D. McLeod, *Administrative Law Judge*

JUL 13 2015

SC Court of Appeals

Lower Case No. 2014-ALJ-04-0365-AP

Appellate Case No. 2014-002613

Kevin J. Daniels, # 247291,.....Appellant,

v.

South Carolina Department of Corrections.....Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

July 10, 2015

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT
OF CORRECTIONS

Christina Catoe Bigelow
Office of General Counsel
P.O. Box 21787
Columbia, SC 29221
803-896-1738

Counsel for Respondent

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE ON APPEAL

DID THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT CORRECTLY AFFIRM THE DEPARTMENT'S FINAL AGENCY DECISION, WHERE THAT DECISION WAS BASED ON SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE AND WAS NOT CLEARLY ERRONOUS, ARBITRARY, CAPRICIOUS, OR AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter comes before the Court pursuant to the appeal of Kevin J. Daniels (Appellant), an inmate incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of Corrections (SCDC or Department). This is an appeal from a final decision of the Administrative Law Court (ALC), which affirmed the Department's March 7, 2014 final decision denying Appellant's Step 2 grievance.

Appellant filed a Step 1 grievance on July 25, 2013 claiming his sentences were not being calculated properly and alleging that his max out date was incorrectly calculated due to a clerical error on the original sentencing sheet. (*R.* at 4). This grievance was denied when it was determined the sentences had been implemented correctly. (*Id.*) Appellant then filed a Step 2 grievance on September 12, 2013, raising the same issue and adding that he believed he was "denied due process by SCDC as well as denied counsel by the unlawful modification and erroneous calculation of [his] sentence without [him] knowing or without a hearing more than 10 months after [he] was sentenced" (*R.* at 6). The Department denied Appellant's Step 2 grievance on March 7, 2014, stating in relevant part:

You have been given credit for all jail time credit due on your sentences. 2012GS4000680 sentenced on 9/13/12 clearly states you are to be given jail time credit in the amount of 388 days. 2013GS3201526 sentenced on 5/8/13 clearly states you are to be given jail time credit beginning 2/2/13. Furthermore, the jail time report from Lexington County shows you were detained on your probation violation 11GS32000794 beginning 2/2/13. While your sentences are concurrent, based on the jail time for each offense, your sentences do have different start and projected completion dates. All jail time has been correctly applied for each sentence.

Appellant filed his notice of appeal with the ALC on March 31, 2014 pursuant to *Al-Shabazz v. State*, 338 S.C. 354, 527 S.E.2d 742 (2000). (R. at 7). On November 21, 2014, the ALC affirmed SCDC's final agency decision.¹ (R. at 3). From that final order, Appellant took an appeal to this Court, filing his Notice of Appeal on December 4, 2014.

¹ The Department respectfully disagrees with the ALC's characterization of its order affirming the Department's final decision as an "Order of Dismissal" because the order does not dismiss the appeal; rather, it reaches the merits and affirms the Department's decision on the merits.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

S.C. Code § 1-23-610(B) provides the applicable standard of review:

The review of the administrative law judge's order must be confined to the record. The reviewing tribunal may affirm the decision or remand the case for further proceedings; or it may reverse or modify the decision if the substantive rights of the petitioner have been prejudiced because the finding, conclusion, or decision is:

- (a) in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions;
- (b) in excess of the statutory authority of the agency;
- (c) made upon unlawful procedure;
- (d) affected by other error of law;
- (e) clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evidence on the whole record; or
- (f) arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion.

S.C. Code § 1-23-610(B); *see also* S.C. Code § 1-23-380(5).

In an appeal of the final decision of an administrative agency, the standard of appellate review is whether the ALC's findings are supported by substantial evidence. S.C. Code § 1-23-610(B). A reviewing court shall not substitute its own judgment for that of the ALC as to findings of fact, but it may reverse or modify decisions that are controlled by errors of law or that are clearly erroneous in view of the substantial evidence on the record as a whole. *Id.* In determining whether the ALC's decision is supported by substantial evidence, this Court need only find, considering the record as a whole, evidence upon which

reasonable minds could rely in reaching the same decision that the ALC reached. *DuRant v. S.C. Dep't of Health & Environ. Control*, 361 S.C. 416, 420, 604 S.E.2d 704, 706 (Ct. App. 2004). The mere possibility of drawing two inconsistent conclusions from the evidence does not prevent a finding from being supported by substantial evidence. *Id.*

ARGUMENT

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT CORRECTLY AFFIRMED THE DEPARTMENT'S FINAL AGENCY DECISION BECAUSE THAT DECISION WAS BASED ON SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE AND WAS NOT CLEARLY ERRONOUS, ARBITRARY, CAPRICIOUS, OR AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION.

This Court should affirm the ALC's November 21, 2014 final order for the reasons contained in that order and for the reasons contained below.

S.C. Code § 24-13-40 provides that, with limited exceptions, inmates are entitled to credit for time served prior to trial and sentencing. However, an inmate is not entitled to credit for detention prior to the time he was charged with an offense. *See Crooks v. State*, 326 S.C. 171, 175, 485 S.E.2d 374, 376 (1997) (holding that an offender could not receive credit for detention before an offense was charged). If a written sentencing order directs that an inmate receive a specific amount of pre-conviction jail time credit, then the written order controls. *See Tant v. S.C. Dep't of Corr.*, 408 S.C. 334, 344, 759 S.E.2d 398, 403 (2014) (“We see no reason why the Department should not be able to rely on unambiguous sentencing sheets as indicative of the intended sentence.”); *Mention v. S.C. Dep't of Corr.*, S.C. Sup. Ct. Order, at 3 (filed Oct. 20, 1999) (unpublished) (“In our opinion, the Department

of Corrections' authority to run the state's prison system does not give it the power to change a sentence imposed by a trial court.") (copy attached).

In this appeal, Appellant claims he should be receiving additional pre-conviction jail time credit on his current sentences. However, contrary to Appellant's claims, his jail time credit has been correctly calculated. On June 8, 2011, Appellant pled guilty to third or subsequent property offense on indictment number 2011-GS-32-00794. (*R.* at 9). He was sentenced to a term of ten years' incarceration, suspended upon the service of time served and three years' probation. (*Id.*). On September 13, 2012, Appellant pled guilty to a separate charge of third or subsequent property offense on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680 and was sentenced to six years' incarceration suspended upon service of 388 days' time served. (*R.* at 10). Subsequently, on February 2, 2013, Appellant committed a shoplifting offense, and he was arrested the same day. (*R.* at 22). Then, on March 15, 2013, Appellant's probation was revoked on indictment number 2011-GS-32-00794, and he was sentenced to five years' incarceration. (*R.* at 12). Finally, on May 8, 2013, Appellant pled guilty to the shoplifting charge for indictment number 2013-GS-32-01526; he was sentenced to eight years' incarceration. (*R.* at 11).

Here, Appellant's pre-conviction jail time has been calculated correctly. On indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680, the sentencing order directs that Appellant should receive 388 days of pre-conviction credit (*R.* at 10), and the Department credited him those 388 days as ordered. However, on indictment number 2013-GS-32-01526, the sentencing

order states only that Appellant should receive “credit for time from Feb. 2, 2013.” (*R.* at 11).

As noted in SCDC’s final agency decision, Appellant has received credit from February 2, 2013 on that sentence.² Furthermore, as to Appellant’s probation revocation, the jail time report provided by the Lexington County Sheriff’s Department reflects that Appellant was arrested on February 2, 2013 and remained in jail until his sentencing on March 15, 2013. (*R.* at 13). Based on the relevant documentation, Appellant has been credited for pre-revocation credit from February 2, 2013.

The ALC correctly concluded that “[t]he sentencing order for indictment 12-GS-40-00680 clearly states that [Appellant] is to receive 388 days applied toward that particular sentence.” (*R.* at 3). The ALC also correctly concluded that “[i]ndictment 13-GS-32-01526 also clearly states that [Appellant] is to receive credit for time served commencing on February 2, 2013, which is the date of the offense and the date of the arrest.” (*Id.*). Moreover, the record conclusively establishes that the “substantial evidence on the whole record” supports the Department’s final agency decision. Appellant has the burden of proving that the decision of the Department is clearly erroneous, or arbitrary or capricious, or an abuse of discretion. *See Porter v. Public Service Comm’n*, 333 S.C. 12, 507 S.E.2d 328 (1998). In this case, Appellant cannot meet this burden. Accordingly, this Court should affirm the decision below.

² Appellant argues he should receive 388 days of credit toward his sentence on indictment number 2013-GS-32-01526 based upon the credit he received on indictment number 2012-GS-40-00680. Appellant’s argument is incorrect for two reasons. First, the sentencing order reflects only credit from February 2, 2013. Second, according to the sentencing order, Appellant’s offense occurred on February 2, 2013. Per statute, Appellant cannot receive credit for detention prior to the date he committed the crime in question.